
 

 

 

 

 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Kevin Hammond 
 

2.  Approval of the February 4, 2026 Agenda 
 

3. Citizen Comments: This is the time for citizens to comment on items not on the agenda.  Please 
keep comments brief and less than three minutes.   

 
4.  Consent Agenda: 

a. Approval of January 7, 2026 City Council Meeting Minutes  
b. Department Reports 
c. Consider Resolution 248 – Annual GAAP Waiver 
d. Adoption of the 2026-2030 City Council Strategic Plan 

 
5. New Business: 

a. Mayoral Appointments 
b. Receive a Presentation from Professional Code Compliance for Code Enforcement 

Services 
c. Receive a Request for Consideration of Residential Water Service for Two Homes at 

County Line and 21st Street 
 

6. Old Business: 
 

7. Executive Sessions (if needed): Attorney/Client: K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(2) 
 

8. Municipal Court Report 
 

9. Pardon Attorney 
 

10. Treasurer Report 
 

11. Pardon Treasurer 
 

12. Governmental Remarks 
 

13. Adjournment 
 

 
*NOTE: this agenda is subject to change without notice 

Governing Body, City of Garden Plain 

City Building, 507 N Main St 

Wednesday, February 4, 2026 at 7:30 pm 



  

 

 

 

 

 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Kevin Hammond: (7:30 PM): 

Mayor Kevin Hammond called the January 7, 2026 City Council meeting to order followed by the Pledge 

of Allegiance and moment of silence. Council members present were Jenny Zoglman, Tracy Thul, Amy 

Hunter, Brent Randolph, and Jessica Lyman. Also present were Tylor Struckman – Public Works Director; 

Brian Helten Public Works Superintendent; Morgan Koon, City Attorney; Darren Haukap, City Treasurer; 

Bryan Crownover, Chief of Police. 

 

2. Approval of January 7, 2026 Agenda: 

Added new business item b. RFQ-City owned Bentwood lots. Tracy Thul made a motion to approve the 

January 7, 2026 agenda with addition, 2nd by Amy Hunter. Vote: 5-0 motion carries. 

 

3. Citizen Comments: None 

 

4. Consent Agenda: 

a. Approval of December 3, 2025 CC Meeting Minutes 

b. Approval of December 2025 bills (checks to include 45206-45286) 

                                                        PBC (checks to include 10007) 

c. Department reports 

d. CMB- 54 Station 

   Brent Randolph made a motion to approve the consent agenda, 2nd by Jenny Zoglman. Vote: 5-0  

 motion carried. 

 

5. Oaths of Office: 

a. Oath of Office for Mayor-Kevin Hammond, Council members-Jessica Lyman and Tracy Thul: 

The Oath of Office was given to Mayor Hammond and then to Council members Lyman and 

Thul by Ms. Kimberly McCormick, City Clerk. 

 

6. Executive Session (7:32 – 7:47):  

a. Brent Randolph made a motion to enter into an executive session for 15 minutes as per K.S.A. 

75-4319(b)(2) matters of attorney/client privilege, 2nd by Tracy Thul. Vote: 5-0 motion carries.  

Council returned to regular session at 7:47 PM with no binding action taken. 

 

 

 

 

 

7. New Business: 

Governing Body, City of Garden Plain 

City Building, 507 N Main St 

January 7, 2026 at 7:30 PM 



a. Kirkham Michael Project Inspection Agreement – Renner Development: The Council 

reviewed the agreement and was advised that this expense would be part of and paid for 

from the project’s  IRB’s, and would not be a cost born by the City.  Brent Randolph made a 

motion to accept the agreement, 2nd by Jessica Lyman. Vote: 5-0 motion carries. 

 

b. RFP for City Owned Lots in Bentwood Addition: City Attorney Morgan Koon provided a draft 

RFP for the Bentwood commercial lots, and requested guidance from the Council regarding 

the price point for each lot, as well as incentives that the Council would be willing to 

entertain, depending on the results of a Cost-Benefit Analysis (CBA) conducted by WSU, 

CEDBR.  Brent Randolph made a motion to issue the RFP,  charging enough per lot, per square 

foot to cover the cost of special assessments, 2nd by Amy Hunter. Vote: 5-0 motion carries. 

 

8. Old Business:  

a. 2026-2030 CC Strategic Plan: A draft of the 2026-2030 City Council strategic plan was 

provided to the City Council for review. Discussion ensued, and council accepted the draft as 

presented. The final plan will be brought back to the Council at the February 4 meeting for 

final adoption. 

 

9. Pardon Attorney: (7:58 PM) 

 

10. Treasurer Report: Treasurer Darren Haukaup stated the City has no budget violations.  We need to keep 

an eye on the utility accounts, we spent more than received in all utility funds, natural gas was the 

biggest issue.  Of note, there were several large expenses for repairs in the gas system that were years 

overdue, so we are working to ensure the system is getting back up to par. It looks like utility rates will 

need to increase in the coming months and/or years to be sure that revenues are comparable to 

expenses.  

 

11. Governmental Remarks: Happy New Year! 

 

12. Adjournment (7:56 PM): Brent Randolph made a motion to adjourn, 2nd by Tracy Thul. Vote: 5-0 motion 

carries. 

 

Respectfully submitted by Kimberly McCormick, MMC – City Clerk 



February 4, 2026 Garden Plain City Council Meeting                                                                                            Agenda Item: 4.b 
 
 

 

TO:  Garden Plain City Council 
FR: City Staff 
RE: January Department Reports and Project Updates 
 
Background:  
The following are updates on current projects and initiatives. 
 
Finance:  

Annual Financial Audit: Randy Ford with BFR was onsite last week to conduct the City’s annual financial audit.  
They will let us know if they have questions, and we anticipate they will be back on site in February to 
complete it.  The findings will be presented to the Council at the March 2026 meeting.  

Sales Tax Revenue: January sales tax revenues were received last week from the Kansas Department of 
Revenue (KDOR).  Monthly revenues totaled $38,330.78.  The City’s one percent portion of the total amount is 
$10,420.76.  For the City’s one percent share, this is a 19% decrease ($2,003.20) from the previous month.   

Grant Application: Staff submitted an application for the annual KDHE Waste Tire Grant funds for four new 8’ 
picnic tables, two of which will be wheelchair accessible.  The total for the four tables is $4,456.  Grant funds 
cover 50% of the cost of the tables.  Awards will be announced in spring 2026.  If awarded, the tables will be 
placed in City Park.  Thanks to Ms. Savannah Shelite for taking the lead on this project this year.  

Police: Reminder: Please be mindful of the new school zone area on Harry Street.  Speed limit is 20 MPH when 
the lights are flashing.  Officers will be monitoring and enforcing the new speed limits throughout the 
community, as adopted by Ordinance by the City Council in December.  Public Works team has ordered and is 
in the process of installing new signage throughout the community.  Last week they completed Pretty Flowers 
and Bentwood. There are a few new signs forthcoming once locates are complete.  Over the next few weeks 
the remainder of town will be completed. An item of note: the Ordinance established a 10 MPH speed limit for 
all alleyways in the community, regardless of signage.  It will be monitored and enforced.  
 
We continue to process a high number of VIN inspections.  We anticipate this is a trend that will continue into 
the near future.  
 
Friendly reminder – please be sure to renew your Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) tags.  The cost is $30 and can 
be paid at city hall by cash, check, debit/credit card, or over the phone.  Be sure to pick up your 2026 stickers 
before the spring and summer weather and special events pick up! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Works:  
 
Water: 



February 4, 2026 Garden Plain City Council Meeting                                                                                            Agenda Item: 4.b 
 
 

 

• Valve Exercising program is completed for all 8" and 6" valves. We do have some that would not turn 
so we will go back to those to see what we can do to get them to turn. If we are not successful in 
getting them to turn, those valves will need to be replaced. We will start exercising 4" and 2" valves in 
April. 

• Water Meter and Setter replacement at 501 N. West St. The meter setter developed a hole at the 
bottom of the meter setter and had to be dug up and replaced. We replaced the aged meter that was 
in there as well.  

• Replaced MXU and MXU cap at 1502 N. Sedgwick 
• Daily well checks and chlorine residual 
• Monthly total coliform samples 
• Locates 

 
Streets: 

• Snow Plow Maintenance 
• Snow Removal 
• Ditch cleaning at Harry and Sedgwick 
• The new signs have arrived that will put us into compliance with the new ordinance set by City Council. 

We will be putting these up in the next month or two, weather pending. 
• Locates 

 
WWTP:  

• Becker Brothers installed new HVAC Mini-Split system in the control room at the WWTP. This room 
needs to be climate controlled due to the fragility of the equipment in the control room. 

• The UV bulbs for the UV disinfection system at the WWTP have arrived. We plan on installing the new 
bulbs in the next couple of weeks. 

• We solicited a quote for a pump and mixer maintenance service agreement from JCI for the WWTP and 
the Lift Station. We have not received that quote back yet. We are anticipating this quote to be less 
than $3000 annually. 

 
Wastewater: 

• Multiple requests for locates 
 
Municipal Pool: The Dondlinger team provided following progress update as of 01/16/26:   
 
Current: 

• Underdrain is nearing completion 
• Pool main drain has been installed and poured 
• Winterization pipe and main drainpipe stubbed out 
• Placing base rock 
• Submittals are ongoing 
• Field Density tests have passed compaction 97% or better 

Look Ahead:  
• Underground pool piping 
• Build forms 



February 4, 2026 Garden Plain City Council Meeting                                                                                            Agenda Item: 4.b 
 
 

 

• Form and pour pool floor and ramp to plunge area 
• Winterization manhole and piping 

 
Upcoming Meetings & Events:  
 
City Closed: Presidents Day: City Facilities will be closed on Monday, Feb. 16 in observance of Presidents Day. 
 
Planning Commission: The Planning Commission/Board of Zoning Appeals is scheduled to meet on Thursday, 
Feb. 19, 2026 at 6 PM in the Council Chambers, 507 N. Main St.   
 
City Council: The City Council will meet in regular session on Wednesday, March 4, 2026 at 7:30 PM in the 
Council Chambers, 507 N. Main St. 
 
Recommended Action: The City Council is asked to:  
 

1. Receive and file 
 
Attachments: 
 None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



February 4, 2026 Garden Plain City Council Meeting                                                                 Agenda Item: 4.c 
 

RESOLUTION 248 

A RESOLUTION WAIVING REQUIREMENTS OF K.S.A.75-1120A(A) 

FOR THE CITY’S 2024 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

WHEREAS the City of Garden Plain, Kansas has determined that preparation of the financial 

statements and financial reports of the city for the yer ended December 31, 2025 in conformity 

with the requirements of K.S.A. 75-1120a (a) is not relevant to the requirements of the cash 

basis and budget laws of the state and would be of no significant value to the City Council or the 

members of the general public of the City of Garden Plain; and 

WHEREAS there are no revenue bond ordinances or resolutions or other ordinances or 

resolutions of the municipality which requires financial statements and financial reports to be 

prepared in conformity with K.S.A. 75-1120a (a) for the year ended 2025. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the Citiy of Garden Plain, Kansas, in 

regular meeting duly assembled this 4th day of February, 2025, that the City Council waives the 

requirements of K.S.A. 75-1120a (a) as they apply to the City of Garden Plain for the year ended 

December 31, 2025.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council shall cause the financial statements and 

financial reports of the City of Garden Plain are to be prepared on the basis of cash receipts and 

disbursements as adjusted to show compliance with the cash basis and budget laws of this 

State.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Garden Plain on the 4th day of February 

2025.  

 

 

        
 __________________________ 
         Kevin Hammond, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 
Kimberly McCormick, City Clerk 



February 4, 2026 Garden Plain City Council Meeting                       Agenda Item: 4.d 
 

 

TO:  Garden Plain City Council 
FR:  Kelly McElroy, City Administrator 
RE: 2025 - 2030 City Council Strategic Plan 
 
Background: 
In 2021 the City Council adopted a five-year strategic plan. At the November 2025 Council meeting, 
the Council reviewed and provided feedback for an updated plan, covering the years of 2026-2030.  
At the January 7, 2026 Council meeting, the Council reviewed an updated draft of the new plan for 
2026-2030.  Staff has prepared the updated plan and it now comes before the Council for final 
approval.   
 
So, what is the purpose of the strategic plan? 
 

• Provides a long-term vision:  
It establishes a shared vision for the community's future, articulating what the city wants to become 
over a set time period.  
 

• Guides decision-making:  
It acts as a guide for all levels of city government, ensuring that day-to-day decisions and resource 
allocation support the city's high-level goals and priorities.  
 

• Aligns resources and efforts:  
The plan helps align limited city resources, staff energy, and departmental projects with the most 
important initiatives.  
 

• Sets clear goals and objectives:  
It breaks down the long-term vision of the City’s 20 year Comprehensive Plan into specific, 
measurable goals and objectives that define what will be accomplished and how progress will be 
tracked.  
 

• Involves stakeholders:  
The process of creating the plan often involves input from residents, businesses, and city staff, 
which helps to ensure the plan reflects the community's needs and aspirations. The plan was 
developed following a series of community surveys and engagement meetings to gather input from 
the GP community.  
 

• Ensures accountability:  
By setting measurable metrics, the strategic plan provides a way to track progress and hold the city 
accountable for achieving its stated goals.  
 

• Manages growth:  
It helps the city anticipate future growth and plan for related infrastructure needs in a proactive 
manner.  
 
Financial Implications:  
The strategic plan lays out the policy and project goals that the community wishes city leadership 
and staff to focus our limited and precious resources on.  There is none for the 
development/updated to the plan itself, unless the Council wishes to hire a professional strategic 



February 4, 2026 Garden Plain City Council Meeting                       Agenda Item: 4.d 
 

 

planner from an organization to conduct a more in-depth rewrite of the plan, community meetings, 
etc.  
 
 
Recommended Action: The City Council is asked to:  

1. Adopt the 2026-2030 City Council Strategic Plan 
 
Attachments: 

A. 2026-2030 City Council Strategic Plan  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



February 4, 2026 Garden Plain City Council Meeting                       Agenda Item: 4.d 
 

 

 

 
City of Garden Plain 

2026-2030 Strategic Plan 
 
Garden Plain City Council Vision Statement:  
A thriving community with an expanded tax base and a City organization providing trustworthy 
service. 
 
Strategic Goals   
Goal One: Increase the Tax Base & Strategically Grow Our Community 

1. Update and implement the city’s incentive policies to increase resources and help create 

jobs. 

2. Expand community development, focusing on retail and commercial growth.  Continue 

industrial development efforts as opportunities arise. 

3. Leverage and enhance existing community partnerships. 

4. Target empty, underused, and dormant commercial and industrial properties and spaces 

for redevelopment. 

 
Goal Two: Increase Housing Stock 

1. Identify and partner with developer(s) to plat single and multi-family housing 

developments for build out. 

2. Continue to work with existing builders and developers and recruit additional, reputable 

companies to construct new single-family homes in all price points. 

3. Explore and identify types of incentives available to developers for new housing.  

4. Provide support to developers seeking incentives at the state level (KHRC, CDBG, and 

others).  

5. Invest in improvements and redevelopment of core area(s) of town. Provide support, 

resources, and allocate funding for needed infrastructure updates and expansions to 

promote in-fill development.  

 
Goal Three: Increase Amenities to Improve Quality of Life 

1. Pursue public-private partnership opportunities to expand retail, commercial, and 

quality of life/place initiatives.  

2. Develop, budget for, and implement plans for redevelopment of existing and new 

community amenities such as parks, splash pad(s), paths and trails, and others as 

derived from recent community surveys and the 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 

3. Develop a master Parks and Trails plan, as noted in the 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 

4. Identify funding for installation of a new downtown Main Street sound system. 

5. Identify potential sites for new public park amenities. 



February 4, 2026 Garden Plain City Council Meeting                       Agenda Item: 4.d 
 

 

6. Expand amenities at the Prairie Sunset Trail head including shade structures, bicycle 

repair stations, water bottle filling stations, potential restroom.  

 
Goal Four: Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Public Facilities 

1. Appropriate funding for preventive infrastructure maintenance and expansion.  Pursue 

grant funding and low interest loans as applicable and available. 

2. Establish and allocate funds to Municipal Equipment Reserves (MERs).  

3. Update and continue to implement priority projects in the Capital Improvement Projects 

(CIP). Continue to pursue state and federal grants and programs to assist with funding 

construction and implementation of these projects.  

4. Adequately fund building maintenance for all City facilities through our MERs and CIPs. 

5. Maintain high-quality construction standards that comply with adopted MABCD 

standards. 

 



February 4, 2026 Garden Plain City Council Meeting                                                               Agenda Item: 5.a 
  
 

ANNUAL APPOINTMENTS 

2026 

 

Municipal Court Judge: ____________________________ 

Municipal Court Clerk:  ____________________________ 

City Attorney:   ____________________________ 

City Treasurer:  ____________________________ 

City Clerk:     ____________________________ 

Police Chief:   ____________________________ 

City Administrator:    ____________________________ 

Planning Commission: ____________________________ 

    ____________________________ 

    ____________________________ 

    ____________________________ 

Library Board:   ____________________________ 

    ____________________________ 

    ____________________________ 

Official City Newspaper: Garden Plain City Website       

Official City Depository: Garden Plain State Bank 

President of the Council:      ____________________________ 

 

 

 



1

Kelly McElroy

Subject: RE: Request for City Water Service

 
From: Brandon Salisbury <brandon@sharphomesks.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, January 14, 2026 9:26 AM 
To: Kim McCormick <cityclerk@gardenplain.com> 
Subject: Request for City Water Service 
 
Good Morning Kim! 
 
We are building two new homes for Drew & Amy Holmes on their property just Southwest of NE 50th 
Street and NE 170th Avenue in Kingman County. In visiting with your water department staff the City of 
Garden Plain has a water main running along the North side of NE 50th Street that is available to hook on 
to.  
 
We understand that as the Builder, if approved, we would be responsible for paying the City of Garden 
Plain any application fees and the cost of tapping the main, boring under NE 50th Street, and installing 2 
residential water meters on the South side of NE 50th Street. The homeowner would then be responsible 
for the individual service liens from the meters to the individual homes.  
 
If the Council has any questions they can reach out to me on my cell 316-210-5915 at any time. 
 
We are projecting to start building these homes within the next week, so would be able to coordinate with 
City Staff the water main connection process very soon. 

Thank you for your consideration of this request, 
 
Brandon Salisbury MIAPD 
Architect | Sharp Homes 
O:316.775.2129 | C:316.210.5915 
 
All fine architectural values are human values, else not valuable. 
-Frank Lloyd Wright 


